
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


AGENDA 
July 10, 2013, Regular (Rescheduled) Meeting 


District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 
Guerneville, California 


6:30 p.m. 
 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 
I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 


(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the June 6, 2013 Regular Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 







 2


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
A. Discussion/Action re Creation of a citizens study group to evaluate election of 


Board Members by districts (Req. by Lloyd Guccione; Est. time 15 min.) 
 
 B. Discussion/Action re Bond Refunding / Refinancing (Est. time 20 min) 
 
 C. Discussion/Action re Proposed AT&T Cell Tower at Highland Treatment Facility 


 Location: 14156 Sunset Avenue, Guerneville (Est. time 5 min) 
 
D. Discussion/Action re Proposed Changes to Purchasing and Conflict of Interest 


Policies (Est. time 10 min)  
 
E. Discussion/Action re Review of Fiscal Year 2012-13 (Est. time 15 min.)   
 
F. Discussion/Action re Establishing an Agenda E-mail List (Req. by GS; Est. time 


10 min.) 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT  
 
VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS (Est. time 


5 min.) 
 
VIII. CLOSED SESSION 
 
 A. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54956.7 
  Property: 17448 River Lane, Guerneville 
  Agency negotiator: Steve Mack 
  Negotiating parties: SSWD and Russian River Park and Recreation District 
 
 B. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54956.7 
  Property: Mt. Jackson cell tower property, Guerneville 
  Agency negotiator: Steve Mack 
  Negotiating parties: SSWD and Unison 


 
 


IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 


ADJOURN 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.)



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
June 6, 2013 
5:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Victoria Wikle 
 Tim Lipinski 
 Gaylord Schaap 
 Richard Holmer 
   
Board Members Absent: (None) 
  
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie A. Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
   
Others in Attendance:     David Warner, Meyers Nave et al. 
      Rick Brandis, Brandis Tallman 
      Steve Tabor, Meyers Nave et al. 
      John Wanger, Coastland Engineering 
      Lloyd Guccione 
      Nhu Le 
      Dana Zimmerman 
      Vera Bergman 
      Other (unidentified) members of the public 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Holmer at 5:30 p.m.  President 
Holmer described the meeting procedures. 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (5:34 


p.m.) 
 
Director Wikle requested that Item V-G (Proposed changes to Purchasing and Conflict of Interest 
policies) be continued to the July meeting if it had not been discussed by 8:30 p.m.  There were no 
objections. 
 
Director Holmer suggested that there be a meeting break at 7 p.m.  There were no objections. 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (5:35 p.m.) 
 


 1







Director Wikle moved to approve the Consent Calendar as submitted.  Director Robb-Wilder 
seconded.  Motion carried 5-0, except that Director Holmer abstained as to a portion of Item III-A 
(Minutes of the May 2, 2013 meeting) as he was absent for a portion of that meeting.  The following 
items were approved: 
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the May 2, 2013 Regular Board Meeting and the June 
4, 2013 Special Board Meeting 


 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payment 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence, if any (None) 
 
D. Approval of Resolution 13-12, For the Election of Directors to the Special District 


Risk Management Authority (SDRMA) Board of Directors 
 
E. Approval of Resolution 13-13, Amending Resolution 13-10, Adopting Water 


Rates for Fiscal Year 2013-14 
 
Public comment was made by Lloyd Guccione. 
 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (5:36 p.m.) 
 
Public comment was made by Lloyd Guccione. 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (5:36 p.m.) 
 
A. (5:36 p.m.) Discussion re Sonoma County Water Agency Presentation on Russian 


River Summer Flow.  Members of the Sonoma County Water Agency made a 
presentation.  Board questions ensued.  Water Agency representatives also took 
questions from numerous unidentified members of the public.  No action was taken. 


 
 


** The meeting recessed at 7:12 p.m., and reconvened at 7:22 p.m. ** 
 
 
B. (7:22 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Approval of Resolution 13-14 Authorizing Water 


Revenue Refunding Bonds in an Amount Not to Exceed $10,000,000 and the 
Execution and Delivery of an Indenture of Trust, a Bond Purchase Agreement and 
an Official Statement and Authorizing Certain Related Matters.  The GM provided an 
overview of this item.  Board questions ensued.  Comments were made by Bond Counsel 
Steve Tabor.  Public comment was made by Dana Zimmerman.  Public comment was 
made by Lloyd Guccione.  Comments were made by Underwriter Rick Brandis of Brandis 
Tallman.  Discussion ensued. 


 
 Director Robb-Wilder moved to approve Resolution 13-14, Authorizing Water Revenue 


Refunding Bonds in an Amount Not to Exceed $10,000,000 and the Execution and 
Delivery of an Indenture of Trust, a Bond Purchase Agreement and an Official Statement 
and Authorizing Certain Related matters.  Director Wikle seconded.  Further comments 
were made by Rick Brandis.  Motion carried 5-0.   


 
C. (8:05 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Resolution 13-15, Awarding a Contract to 


Groundwater Pump, Inc. for Purchase of Pumping Equipment for the 2014 CIP and 
Authorizing the General Manager to execute the Contract.  The GM provided an 
overview of this item.  Board questions ensued.  Public comment was made by Lloyd 
Guccione.  Public comment was made by Vera Bergman.  Board discussion ensued.  
Director Wikle moved to approve Resolution 13-15, Awarding a Sole Source Contract for 
Booster Pump System Fabrication and Installation at Hidden Valley Road for an 


 2







Estimated Cost of $49,213 and Change Order Approval up to $2,500.  Director Robb-
Wilder seconded.  Further discussion ensued.  Director Robb Wilder moved to approve 
Resolution 13-15, amended to revise the wording of Section 2 to be $49,213 instead of 
$49,219.  Director Wikle seconded the motion as amended.  Motion carried 5-0. 


 
D. (8:25 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Resolution 13-16, Awarding Contract for the FY 


2014 Capital Improvement Project (CIP 2014) and Authorizing the General Manager 
(limited) Change Order Approval.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board 
discussion ensued.  Public comment was made by Lloyd Guccione.  Director Robb-
Wilder moved to approve Resolution 13-16, Approving the Construction Project Budget 
and Awarding the Contract for the FY 2014 Capital Improvement Project to Piazza 
Construction in the Sum of $892,041, and Authorizing the General Manager Total 
Change Order Approval of $89,200, County of Sonoma Permit Fees of $20,211, and 
Single Change Order Approval up to $25,000, contingent upon no protests by 2 p.m. on 
June 7, 2013.  Director Wikle seconded.  Further discussion ensued.  Director Wikle 
amended Director Robb-Wilder’s motion to include permit fees.  Director Robb-Wilder 
accepted the amendment.  Further discussion ensued.  Motion carried 5-0.  


 
E. (8:34 p.m.) Discussion re Tour of District Facilities.  The GM provided an overview of 


this item.  Public comment was made by Vera Bergman.  Discussion ensued.  No action 
was taken.  


 
F. (8:37 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Proposed AT&T Cell Tower at Highland Treatment 


Facility 
 Location: 14156 Sunset Avenue, Guerneville 
 The GM provided an overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  Public comment was 


made by Lloyd Guccione.  Board discussion ensued.  Comments were made by Legal 
Counsel David Warner.  No action was taken. 


 
G. (This item was continued to the July Board Meeting.  See, Item II above.) 


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:50 p.m.) 
 
The General Manager deferred to the written report in lieu of an oral presentation of the items in 
the report:   
1. Laboratory testing 
2. Water Production and Sales 
3. Leaks 
4. Flow at Hacienda Bridge 
5. 2014 CIP 
6. Toilet Rebate / Direct Install Program 
7. In-House Construction Projects 
8. Gantt Chart 
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS  
(8:50 p.m.) 


 
(None.)  
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:50 p.m.) 
 
At 8:50 p.m. President Holmer announced the items for discussion in Closed Session.  The 
Board went into Closed Session at 8:51 p.m.  At 9:06 p.m., the meeting reconvened and the 
following actions on Closed Session items were announced:  
 


 3







 4


 A. Conference with Real Property Negotiator pursuant to Gov. Code Section 
54956.7 


  Property: 17448 River Lane, Guerneville 
  Agency negotiator: Steve Mack 
  Negotiating parties: SSWD and Russian River Park and Recreation District  
  No action was taken. 
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (9:07 p.m.) 
 
1. Unisom offer (closed session) 
2. Purchasing and Conflict of Interest policies 
3. Bond refunding/refinancing update 
4. River Lane property (closed session) 
5. Establishing an Agenda e-mail list (req. by Director Schaap) 
 
 


ADJOURN 
The meeting adjourned at 9:10 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
APPROVED:  
 
Victoria Wikle:  ______________ _ ______  
Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  
Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  
Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  
Richard Holmer        





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (5:34 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (5:35 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (5:36 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (5:36 p.m.)

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:50 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 

		(8:50 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:50 p.m.)



		IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (9:07 p.m.)

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


MEETING DATE:  July 10, 2013  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE CREATION OF A CITIZENS STUDY GROUP TO 
EVALUATE ELECTION OF BOARD MEMBERS BY DISTRICTS 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a presentation by Lloyd Guccione on the 
creation of a citizens study group, with at least one but not more than two 
Board Members, to evaluate and report back on possible election of Board 
Members by districts.   


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none expected.       
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Mr. Guccione has requested this item on the agenda with the stated purpose 
of initiating a "study" of the issues, procedural steps and requirements, 
benefits, costs, problems, etc of changing to a Board elected by District.  His 
email requesting this item stated that the board could appoint individuals 
from the various locales of the district, along with a board member, for the  
purpose of bringing information and perspectives together and reporting back 
to the Board their results and recommendations.   
 
Mr. Guccione would like to make a short oral presentation and take questions 
and have opportunity to respond to points made.   
 
District Legal Counsel Warner informed me that the LAFCO formation 
resolution conditioned formation on the District Board consisting “of five 
members elected at large from throughout the district.”   That may limit the 
Board’s ability to seek voter approval for district elections, if it so desires, 
without first getting LAFCO approval. 
.   





		MEETING DATE:  July 10, 2013 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


MEETING DATE:  July 10, 2013  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION PROGRESS ON REFINANCING 
DISTRICT USDA BONDS 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a report on the progress on refinancing 
the Districts United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) bonds.   


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Refinancing/refunding District bonds may save District up 
to $50,000 annually.       
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
BACKGROUND  


 
At the June meeting the Board approved Resolution 13-14 which authorized moving 
forward with refinancing the District’s USDA bonds (Prior Bonds).  The Prior Bonds 
consist of two series of loans with the USDA. The initial loan was for $8,000,000 at a 
fixed rate of 5.0% with a final maturity of 2031. There is $5,651,307 outstanding on 
this loan. The second loan was for $4,000,000 at a fixed rate of 4.5% with a final 
maturity of 2042. There is $3,605,000 currently outstanding on this loan.  Both 
USDA loans are callable at any time with no prepayment penalty.   
 
The Underwriters working for the District, Brandis Tallman, and associated bond 
refinancing legal counsel from Meyers Nave were progressing forward with the 
refinancing until June 19 when comments by the Federal Reserve Bank Chairman 
Ben Bernanke sent the financial markets into a period of instability and lower prices 
on bonds.  This made refinancing at that time (we were set to price the bonds on the 
20th) infeasible.  Since then we have been watching the bond market.  Below is a 
summary of the situation from Brandis Tallman: 
 
Since the financing team presented to the Board at its special meeting on March 
21st, interest rates have increased. The 10-year National AAA GO Municipal Market 
Data (“MMD”) yield was 1.95% on March 21st *(Figure 1).  The 10-year MMD had 
dropped to 1.66% on May 1st, however since then rates have increased.  The largest 
jump in rates occurred since May 22nd when the 10-year MMD yield was at 1.86%. 
On May 22nd, Federal Reserve Chairman Ben Bernanke spoke to Congress and 
mentioned that the Fed may be considering tapering their asset purchase program of 
$85 billion a month, sending Treasury interest rates on a steep incline, a run-up of 
over 20 basis points over 5 trading days. Municipal bonds have taken their lead from 
Treasury securities. On May 29th, the 10-year MMD yield was 2.07%. 







REFINANCING DISTRICT USDA BONDS 2  
July 10, 2013 
 


 


 
Market Reaction to FOMC Statement and Ben Bernanke’s Press Conference, 
June 19th:  
 
Bernanke spoke again on June 19th just prior to the contemplated pricing of the 
District’s Refunding Bonds. His comments were positive about the economy, and he 
stated that the Fed’s plans to taper bond purchases may begin in the fall and 
continue through the middle of 2014.  Treasuries got hammered, with the 
benchmark 10-year Treasury yield jumping nearly 15 basis points to end the day at 
2.33%, its highest close since March of 2012.  The 10-year MMD yield jumped 4 
basis points to 2.28%.  On June 20th, the muni selloff forced issuers out of the 
market. The District’s Refunding Bond sale was postponed, as were other issues 
expected to sell that day including the $763 million California Health Facilities 
Authority bond sale.  The MMD yields ended as much as 20 basis points higher. The 
benchmark 10-year Treasury yield ended 7 basis points higher at 2.40% while the 
30-year yield increased 9 basis points to 3.49%.  
 
On June 21st, muni investors continued to pull money from the market in record 
breaking droves. Muni bond funds suffered outflows of $2.22 billion for the week of 
June 19th, a record for the year. Muni bond funds reported $1.61 billion in outflows 
the week before.   
 
Treasury and MMD yields continued to rise through June 25th marking the worst 
three-day loss in a quarter century.  The 10-year MMD yield jumped 17 basis points 
to 2.80%, the highest since May of 2011. The 30-year MMD yield jumped 17 basis 
points to 4.13%.  Overall, the MMD yields jumped nearly 60 basis points in three 
days.  The benchmark 10-year Treasury yield jumped six basis points to 2.57%. 
 
The market finally saw some relief on Wednesday, June 26th, due to released data 
showing the U.S. economy had grown less than previously estimated.  This eased 
concern that the Federal Reserve is moving closer to slowing its bond buying. Yields 
on the MMD ended as much as 22 basis points lower. The 10-year MMD yield 
dropped 20 basis points to 2.61% and the 30-year yield plunged 22 basis points to 
3.91%.  
 
The market continued to steady itself towards the end of the week. A small buying 
spree continued June 27th following the big rally the day before, led by the primary 
market.  On Friday, June 28th, the yields on the MMD scale ended as much as 8 basis 
points lower.  
 
Munis had a quiet opening on July 1st, in reaction to a volatile week the week before, 
as well as thinner staffs around the 4th of July holiday.  A weaker open in Treasuries 
lend to some soft muni secondary trades. Steadier activity was seen in the 
afternoon. The muni market showed signs of mending itself underscored by 
increased bond sales.  Treasuries steadied in the afternoon.  
 
Trading seemed more consistent on Tuesday, July 2nd.  New York’s Metropolitan 
Transportation Authority came to market, pricing for institutions $336 million of 
revenue bonds that were pulled off the market on June 19th due to volatility.   In 







REFINANCING DISTRICT USDA BONDS 3  
July 10, 2013 
 


 


California, the City of San Diego issued $49.5 million of revenue bonds.  Tuesday’s 
MMD yields ended mostly steady across the curve. The 10-year and 30-year yields 
were steady for the fourth session at 2.56% and 3.83%, respectively.  Treasuries 
ended with modest gains as the benchmark 10-year Treasury yield settled at 2.47% 
versus 2.48% on Monday. The 30-year Treasury yield ended the day unchanged at 
3.47%. 
 
REFUNDING RESULTS 
 
Due to the steep run up of interest rates recently, the savings produced by the 
refunding have decreased, but are still economically beneficial.  With a public 
offering of the Refunding Bonds, the method of sale anticipated all along, the all-in 
true interest cost is 4.14%, average fiscal year savings are $32,069, and total 
savings are $951,573.  Net present value savings are $562,457 or 6.70%.  The 
refunding still provides savings comfortably in excess of the industry standard 
minimum of 3.0%.   
 
Because the bond market has experienced one of its most turbulent periods in the 
last 25 years, the financing team has also explored a private placement method of 
sale:  A sale to one qualified investor, such as a bank.  The limitation of a private 
placement is that the term cannot extend beyond 20 years.  This would allow for the 
complete refunding of the 1992 Loan and a partial refunding of the 2003 Loan.  The 
2003 Loan has approximately $1,611,000 outstanding in years 21 through 29 so 
that portion would remain due and payable to the USDA.  The private placement 
method of sale produces an all-in true interest cost of 3.92%, average fiscal year 
savings of $43,159, and total savings of $891,360.  Net present value savings are 
$621,147 or 8.12%.  The interest rate on the private placement can be locked for up 
to 30 days while the paperwork on the transaction is in process.  Another Board 
meeting would be required for the Board to approve the revised structure and 
documentation. 
 
Next Steps 
 
District Staff and the financing team will reconvene on Monday, July 8th, to review 
market conditions and discuss the best method of sale for the Refunding Bonds.  If 
the market conditions are favorable, we may move forward with the public offering.  
If not, it may be time to turn to the private offering discussed above.  A full report 
will be presented at the Board meeting on Wednesday.   


 
 
 


 
 
 







REFINANCING DISTRICT USDA BONDS 4  
July 10, 2013 
 


 


Figure 1: 


 





		MEETING DATE:  July 10, 2013 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


MEETING DATE:  July 10, 2013  
 
Subject:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE PROPOSED AT&T CELL TOWER AT 
HIGHLAND TREATMENT FACILITY 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a report on the progress with arriving at 
acceptable lease agreement for leasing a portion of the Highland Treatment 
Facility parcel for use as a cell tower and provide direction to staff.   


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none       
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
As of the writing of this report I have not received any new information from 
AT&T regarding the cell tower lease agreement.  I have been promised a 
response soon and will share it with the Board if it arrives prior to the meeting. 
 
Last week the permit for the cell tower at the Highland Treatment Facility was 
conditionally (I think) approved by the County of Sonoma Planning 
Commission. The public hearing was continued until August 8th where the 
Planning Commission wants to see more coverage maps.  
 
The staff report recommended rejection of the permit because of AT&T ability to 
use another site on Siri Road which would be preferable according to County 
guidelines.   If the Planning Commission continues to have a favorable opinion, 
this decision can be appealed to the Board of Supervisors.   
 
I have heard from one neighbor of the Highland site who is opposed to the 
location because of health concerns.  The local agency permitting process is 
not allowed to include health concerns in its decision-making process by 
federal law.  I have looked up the health-related issues on the Internet and it 
appears that the major health related organizations, including the American 
Cancer Society, agree that health concerns are not an issue with cell towers.  
We may be receiving other information from concerned residents at the 
meeting.   
 
A link to frequently asked questions about cell towers prepared by an 
engineering company that works in the field is:  http://h-e.com/faq.   
 



http://h-e.com/faq





AT&T Cell Tower Lease 2  
July 10, 2013 
 


 


A link to a differing viewpoint is: 
http://www.mountshastaecology.org/Archive/Health_Effects_from_Cell_Phone_Towe
r_Radiation.html. 
 
 
 



http://www.mountshastaecology.org/Archive/Health_Effects_from_Cell_Phone_Tower_Radiation.html

http://www.mountshastaecology.org/Archive/Health_Effects_from_Cell_Phone_Tower_Radiation.html



		MEETING DATE:  July 10, 2013 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


MEETING DATE:  July 10, 2013  
 
Subject:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE PROPOSED CHANGES TO 
PURCHASING AND CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICIES 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a presentation on proposed changes to 
Policy Number 3700 Bidding and Purchasing and Policy Number 1020 Conflict of 
Interest.   


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none expected.       
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The annual audits of the past few years have pointed out that the District does 
not follow its purchasing policy as stated in Policy Number 3700.  Review of the 
policy has shown that it has inconsistent direction as well as practices that are 
no longer followed.  In the process of trying to fix the existing policy, District 
Legal Counsel, David Warner, suggested modeling a revised purchasing policy 
on that of the City of Healdsburg and that is what we have done.  The existing 
policy and the proposed revised policy is shown as Attachment A and A.1.  We 
believe this revised policy incorporates the important elements of the existing 
policy – it changes no purchasing limits – and is much more straightforward and 
easy to follow.   
 
The changes to Policy Number 1020, Conflict of Interest are necessary because 
the County of Sonoma has changed its procedures which allows it to delegate 
some responsibility for filing statements of economic interests to municipalities 
and special districts.  These changes are small and should have little impact on 
District operations.   The existing policy and the proposed policy are shown as 
Attachment B and B.1.   
 
Please review these proposed changes.  If acceptable to the Board we plan to 
introduce the ordinance changing the policies at the August 1 meeting and adopt 
the ordinance at the September meeting.   







Attachment A.  Existing  Purchasing Policy 


3700  Bidding and Purchasing 
Date Approved: February 9, 1993____ 
Date Revised: September 5, 2002 
 
 
 3700.10 This policy is intended both to state mandatory requirements and 
to eliminate and avoid all procedures and practices not herein made  mandatory, even 
though the District may from time to time and for its own purposes give additional notices 
or time for submission of proposals, or may add other non mandatory procedures.  
Failure to follow any procedure proposed or directed by resolution or motion or by the 
order of the district management will not invalidate or affect any purchase, sale, lease or 
contract unless expressly required by state law. 
 
 3700.20 Competitive Bids on Construction:  Except as hereinafter 
otherwise provided, all works shall be constructed and all contracts for the construction 
of work shall be let pursuant to competitive bids and the work shall be performed by the 
contractor who shall be found and determined by the Board of Directors of the district to 
have presented the lowest responsible bid in each instance.  This section does not apply 
to purchase of materials, supplies, equipment or land. 
 
 3700.30 Competitive Bids Not Required:  Work and improvements 
(including new construction, repair, maintenance and replacement) shall not require 
competitive bids in the following cases: 
 
  3700.31 Work and improvements done by the district itself by force 
account.  This will include both work and improvements initially so undertaken and that 
upon which bids may have been received and rejected. 
 
  3700.32 Work and improvements to be done by contract upon 
which the estimated cost including labor and materials is less than twenty-five thousand 
dollars ($25,000.00). 
 
 3700.40 Force Account:  The expression “force account”, as used in this 
policy, is intended to and shall refer to and include all work in which the district 
determines or directs the method and the timing of performance, as distinguished from 
specifying and requiring results with inspection.  This will ordinarily encompass work 
done by the regular employees of the district, but it will also include work done by 
contractors and other new employees who may be employed for specific jobs, if and so 
long as their performance is under the full control of the district and if the district 
reserves the right to stop the work or to increase or decrease it without the consent of 
such contractor or other employee. 
 
  
 3700.50 Notice of Call for Bids:  When competitive bids for construction are 
to be received, plans and specifications shall be filed and notice of call for bids shall be 
given as follows: 
 







  3700.51 Plans and specifications for such proposed works or 
structures shall first be prepared and filed with and approved by the Board of Directors. 
 
  3700.52 If and when such plans and specifications have been 
approved by the Board, it shall direct the notices inviting bids therefore which shall be 
given in the manner herein provided, and it shall at such time fix the time and place for 
receiving and opening such bids. 
 
  3700.53 Unless the Board shall specifically direct otherwise, each 
such notice inviting bids shall be signed by the secretary of the district and shall be 
published once in a newspaper of general circulation printed, published and circulated in 
the District or in Sonoma County, at least ten (10) days prior to the date fixed for 
receiving and opening bids.  Such notice may also be published in one or more trade 
journals published and circulated in the San Francisco Bay Area, but such publication is 
not required. 
 
  3700.54 At the time and place fixed for the opening of such bids, 
they shall be publicly opened and declared by the district engineers and the contract 
therefore shall thereafter be awarded by the Board of Directors to the lowest responsible 
bidder; provided, however, that the finding and determination of the Board of Directors 
as to which bid is the lowest responsible bid shall be final and may be based in part or 
wholly upon the experience, personnel, qualifications, equipment, facilities and the 
readiness of the contractor to perform the work; and provided further that the matter of 
opening and declaring such bids or the matter of awarding such contract may be 
postponed by the Board (or if there be no quorum, then by the clerk of the board or 
secretary) from time to time for a period not exceeding sixty days; and provided further 
that the bids may be rejected in their entirety, with our without cause; and that if the 
board does so reject all bids, it may call for new bids. 
 
  3700.55 In the event the Board shall so determine, it may reject all 
bids and either abandon the work or call for new bids, or it may reject all bids and 
determine that the work shall be done by “force account”. 
 
  3700.56 Whenever any project shall involve the expenditure of 
bond or special assessment funds, or any funds derived from state or federal sources, 
the provisions of law or contract applicable thereto shall be complied with. 
 
  3700.57 Except as provided in subsection 3800.53 hereof, the 
Board of Directors may in any case determine that the welfare of the district requires that 
time be shortened and in such case may direct that notice be published not less than 
five days prior to the date fixed for receiving and opening bids. 
 
 3700.60 Board Approval of Plans and Specifications Prior to Notice of Call 
for Bids not Required:  The General Manager need not obtain the Board of Directors’ 
approval to advertise plans and specifications for construction when the project has 
previously been approved and budgeted by the board or when there is an emergency.  
In case of emergency, and subject to ratification by the Board of Directors prior to the bid 
award, the General Manager may approve the plans and specifications, order them filed 
and, if time is available, direct publication of the notice inviting bids once in a newspaper 
of general circulation printed, published and circulated in the District or Sonoma County 
at least five days prior to the date fixed for receiving and opening bids. 







 
 3700.70 Informal Quotations:  Whenever a contract is not required by this 
policy to be let upon competitive bid, the Board of Directors or General Manager may 
elect to call for informal quotations before letting a contract thereon.  No call or 
advertisement for such quotations shall be deemed to bring the project under standard 
competitive bidding rules nor shall the district be required, or in such case, to award to 
the lowest responsible bidder or at all. 
 
 3700.80 Movable or Personal Property:  No project involving the 
construction, improvement, repair or alteration of movable or other personal property 
shall require competitive bids.  The Board may, if it so determines in any instance, direct 
the filing of plans and specifications for any such construction, repair or alteration and, in 
such event, the procedures set forth in Section 3800.40 and 3800.50 of this policy may 
be followed.  Unless the board shall specifically so direct, however, this class of work 
shall be performed by the forces of the district, or may be performed by any contractor, 
upon a contract or under purchase order without calling for or receiving any competitive 
bids thereon. 
 
 3700.90 Real Property Belonging to District:  Real property belonging to 
the district shall be disposed of, sold or transferred only as the Board of Directors may 
prescribe, but unless otherwise prescribed in any case, the following procedures therefor 
shall be followed: 
 
  3700.91 A notice shall be given by the Clerk of the Board 
(Secretary) stating that the district proposes to sell certain described property and stating 
the time and place when sealed bids will be received thereon. 
 
  3700.92 The Board of Directors shall fix the time and place for the 
receipt of such bids and shall instruct the Clerk of the Board (Secretary) with respect 
thereto. 
 
  3700.93 Such notice calling for sealed bids shall be published at 
least once in a newspaper of general circulation printed, published and circulate within 
the District or County of Sonoma, State of California, at least ten days prior to the date 
fixed for the receipt and opening of such bids. 
 
  3700.94 Upon the receipt of such bids and at the time and place 
fixed therefor, the same shall be publicly opened and declared by the Board of Directors 
and the property sold to the highest bidder therefor, provided, however, that the Board 
may reject all bids and retain the property or determine that bids shall again be called 
for. 
 
  3700.95 Nothing herein set forth shall apply to any easement, 
license or lease of land for a term of fifty years of less; provided that such easement, 
license or lease and all use thereunder shall be subordinate to use of such land by the 
District for the major purposes of the district. 
 
 3710.00 Movable or Personal Property Belonging to the District:  Movable 
or personal property belonging to the district shall be disposed of, sold or transferred as 
follows unless otherwise prescribed by the board of directors. 
 







  3710.10 Items with an estimated salvage value of less than ten 
thousand dollars may be sold at public auction conducted by the District or its authorized 
agent. 
 
  3710.11 Items not considered suitable for auction can be used as a 
trade-in or disposed of in any manner approved by the General Manager. 
 
  3710.12 Items not disposed of under subsections 390.91 and 
3900.92 above, shall be disposed of, sold or transferred pursuant to the same 
procedures applicable to real property set forth in 3900.80 above. 
 
 3720.00 Purchase of Real Property - Eminent Domain:  If and whenever 
the Board of Directors shall determine that the District requires and should purchase real 
property, or any interest therein, it shall do so without any call for bids and in such 
manner as may be specified in each instance.  In the event the board shall so determine, 
it may in any instance proceed with eminent domain proceedings. 
 
 3730.00 Purchase of Supplies, Consultant, Service Contracts and 
Equipment:  Materials, supplies, equipment and other personal property, generally shall 
be approved by the Board of Directors or be within specified budget limits for the 
expenditure.  All purchase orders over $10,000.00 shall be reported to the Board of 
Directors not later than the second regular meeting after authorization.  The following 
purchases may be made by the designated authority provided sufficient funds remain in 
the budget category.  All other purchases shall be authorized by the Board of Directors 
unless otherwise directed by the provisions of this policy as outlined below: 
 
Type     Authority Required Dollar Limit 
 
Purchase Order for  General Manager or    
materials, supplies  Field Supervisor    
services & equip.       $5,000.00 
 
Purchase Order for 
materials, supplies, 
services & equip.   General Manager  $15,000.00 
 
Purchase Order for 
specifically  budgeted 
items.    General Manager  $30,000.00 
 
Amendments/extensions 
of existing contracts, or 
emergency situations pro- 
vided sufficient funds remain 
in the budget category  General Manager  $ 5,000.00 
 
  3730.20 In case of an emergency requiring immediate procurement 
of pipe, fittings, materials, equipment, supplies or other personal property or contracted 
services, the General Manager or designated employee may proceed to acquire such as 
is reasonably required.  All such emergency purchases shall be reported to the Board of 
directors (not later than the second regular meeting following the date of such approval). 







 
  3730.30 No competitive bid shall be required for any of the 
purchases to be made under subsection 3830.20 above, or for any consultant or 
services contract.  Purchase Orders shall not be split to avoid dollar limitations.  
Cumulative issuance of purchase orders that exceed authorized limits shall not be made 
without Board approval. 
 
  3730.40 Whenever practical and equal competitive products are 
available, informal quotations thereon shall be taken from at least three competitive 
manufacturers or dealers before any purchase is made in excess of five hundred dollars 
unless exception has been approved by the General Manager.  These competitive 
quotations shall be reported to the Board of Directors.  The Board of Directors may then 
make such purchases based on these informal quotations, or any other quotations, as 
the Board may think best or it may direct the procurement of additional informal 
quotations.  All specific notices calling for bids are hereby dispensed with and declared 
to be unnecessary and inadvisable for the purchase of personality, except as informally 
procured by mailed or telephoned notice.  No informal or other quotations in advance of 
purchase shall be required unless expressly called for by action of the Board of 
Directors. 
 
 3740.00 Requisitions, Payment Requests and Demands:  Use of Purchase 
Orders.  Purchase orders shall only be required for equipment, tools, furniture and 
vehicles that individually have an original total cost of more than $300.00.  All purchase 
orders shall be approved by the General Manager. 
 







Attachment A.1.  Proposed Purchasing Policy 
 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
Policy Title: Bidding and Purchasing 
Policy Number: 3700 
Date Approved: February 9, 1993____ 
Date Revised: September 5, 2002 
Date Revised: September 5, 2013 


Sections: 


3700.10    Purpose of purchasing policies and procedures. 


3700.20    Definitions. 


3700.30    Purchasing officer designated and duties established. 


3700.40    Procedures for purchases of less than $25,000. 


3700.50    Procedures for purchases of more than $25,000 – Formal sealed bids. 


3700.60    Purchasing award. 


3700.70    Purchasing award – Factors to be considered. 


3700.80    Exceptions to this section. 


3700.90    Splitting orders prohibited. 


3700.100    Prevailing wages. 


3700.110    Inspection and testing of purchases. 


3700.120    Surplus supplies and equipment. 


3700.130    Surplus real property. 


3700.140    Purchase of Real Property - Eminent Domain. 


3700. 10  Purpose of purchasing policies and procedures. 


The purpose of this section is to (A) establish efficient and effective processes for the 
purchase or lease of services, supplies, materials and equipment at the lowest feasible 
cost commensurate with the level of quality required; (B) exercise financial control and 
accountability over purchases; and (C) clearly define authority for the purchasing 
function. In adopting the ordinance codified in this section, it is the intent of the District to 
responsibly manage public funds and provide responsibility for, and consistency in, 
implementing purchasing policies and procedures.  



http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/healdsburg/html/Healdsburg03/Healdsburg0324.html#3.24.010

http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/healdsburg/html/Healdsburg03/Healdsburg0324.html#3.24.020

http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/healdsburg/html/Healdsburg03/Healdsburg0324.html#3.24.030

http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/healdsburg/html/Healdsburg03/Healdsburg0324.html#3.24.040

http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/healdsburg/html/Healdsburg03/Healdsburg0324.html#3.24.050

http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/healdsburg/html/Healdsburg03/Healdsburg0324.html#3.24.060

http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/healdsburg/html/Healdsburg03/Healdsburg0324.html#3.24.070

http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/healdsburg/html/Healdsburg03/Healdsburg0324.html#3.24.080

http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/healdsburg/html/Healdsburg03/Healdsburg0324.html#3.24.100

http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/healdsburg/html/Healdsburg03/Healdsburg0324.html#3.24.110

http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/healdsburg/html/Healdsburg03/Healdsburg0324.html#3.24.140

http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/healdsburg/html/Healdsburg03/Healdsburg0324.html#3.24.130

http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/healdsburg/html/Healdsburg03/Healdsburg0324.html#3.24.140





3700.20  Definitions. 


As used in this section, the following terms shall have the meanings described below: 


A.    “District” means the Sweetwater Springs Water District, including the political entity 
and its geographical boundaries. 


B.    “Excluded goods or services” means goods or services (as described below) in 
which any District official or District employee has a financial interest. 


C.    “Goods or services” means services, supplies, materials and equipment that are the 
subject of this section. 


D.    “Purchasing officer” means the District General Manager or designee of the District 
General Manager. 


E.    “This section” means Section 3700  


3700.30 Purchasing officer designated and duties established. 


A.    The District General Manager is designated as purchasing officer for the District.  


B.    The District General Manager may delegate all or a portion of the duties of 
purchasing officer to any District staff member. The purchasing officer shall have the 
authority to: 


3700.31.    Purchase, or contract for the sale or lease of, goods or services required by 
the District in accordance with purchasing procedures established in this section and 
other applicable law; 


3700.32.    Negotiate and recommend execution of contracts for purchase or lease of 
goods or services in accordance with purchasing procedures established in this section 
and other applicable law; 


3700.33.    Act to procure for the District the necessary quality in goods or services in 
accordance with the provisions of this section and other applicable law; 


3700.34.    Prepare and recommend to the District Board amendments to the purchasing 
rules; 


3700.35.    Establish and maintain such forms as reasonably necessary to the 
purchasing function and maintain other records necessary for the efficient acquisition of 
goods or services; 


3700.36.    Supervise the inspection of all goods or services purchased or leased by the 
District to ensure conformance with specifications; 


3700.37.    Recommend and oversee the sale or disposal of all goods or services which 
cannot be used by the District, or which have become unsuitable for District use; 



http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/healdsburg/html/Healdsburg03/Healdsburg0324.html#3.24





C.    Purchase agreements up to an amount of $25,000 may be authorized and executed 
by the purchasing officer. Purchase agreements of $25,000 or more shall be authorized 
by the District Board.  


3700.40 Procedures for purchases of less than $25,000. 


A.    For purchases of goods or services of less than $25,000, or that are not subject to 
other laws and/or procedures, the purchasing officer shall use the following procedures: 


3700.41.    For purchases of goods or services having an estimated value of $1,000 or 
less, informal quotes may be obtained from vendors but are not required.  


3700.42.    For purchases of goods or services having an estimated value of more than 
$1,000, but less than $25,000, firm quotes either received in writing or taken verbally but 
confirmed in writing shall be obtained. At the discretion of the purchasing officer, the 
competitive bid process described in 3700.50 may be used for the acquisition of goods 
or services having an estimated value of more than $1,000, but less than $25,000. 


3700.50 Procedures for purchases of more than $25,000 – Formal sealed bids. 


When the estimated amount of value involved in a purchase transaction exceeds 
$25,000, the authorization to award a purchase contract shall be made by District Board 
resolution following a sealed competitive bid process as outlined below: 


3700.51.    A notice inviting bids shall be prepared and shall include a general 
description of the goods or services to be purchased or sold, where bid instructions and 
specifications may be obtained, the time and place for bid openings, and whether a bid 
deposit or bond, or other security, such as performance, payment or maintenance 
bonds, will be required.  


3700.52.    A notice inviting bids shall be advertised at least twice in a newspaper of 
general circulation in the District with the first publication being at least 10 days prior to 
the opening of bids. 


3700.53.    When required by law or deemed appropriate by the purchasing officer, and if 
included in bid instructions, bidders may be required to submit a bid deposit or bond in 
an amount determined by the purchasing officer. Bidders shall be entitled to return of bid 
security, except that a successful bidder (and a successful bidder’s surety, if a bid bond 
is required) shall be liable for any damages suffered or incurred by the District upon 
refusal or failure to execute a contract within 10 days after the notice of award of 
contract has been mailed, unless the District is responsible for the delay.  


3700.55.    The District Board may, on refusal or failure of the successful bidder to 
execute the contract, award it to the next lowest responsible bidder. If the District Board 
awards the contract to the next lowest bidder following a forfeit of the bid security by the 
lowest bidder, the amount of the lowest bidder’s bid security shall be applied by the 
District to the difference between the low bid and the second lowest bid; the surplus, if 
any, shall then be returned to the lowest bidder. 







3700.56.    When deemed appropriate by the purchasing officer, and if included in bid 
instructions, any person or entity entering into a contract with the District may be 
required to furnish a faithful performance deposit or bond in an amount determined by 
the purchasing officer.  


3700.57.    Sealed bids shall be submitted to the purchasing officer and shall be 
identified as bids on the envelope. Bids shall be opened in public at the time and place 
stated in the public notices. A tabulation of all bids received shall be open for public 
inspection during regular business hours for a period of not less than 30 calendar days 
after the bid opening. 


3700.58.    In its sole discretion, the District Board may reject all bids presented and 
readvertise for bids. 


3700.60 Purchasing award. 


In awarding a contract for goods or services that is subject to this section, the following 
procedures and policies shall be applied:  


A.     Except as may otherwise be provided in this section, contracts that are subject to 
this section shall be awarded to a responsible bidder who submits the lowest responsive 
bid. 


B.    If two or more bids received from responsible bidders are for the same total amount 
or unit price, quality and service being equal the purchasing officer or District Board 
(depending on who will make the award) may accept the lowest bid made by negotiation 
with the tie bidders. 


3700.70 Purchasing award – Factors to be considered. 


A.    In determining bid responsiveness, the purchasing officer or District Board 
(depending on who will make the award) shall consider whether the bid documents are 
completed as required and the bid generally conforms to the bidding requirements. The 
purchasing officer or District Board may waive any bid nonconformities in accordance 
with applicable law. Any conditions or qualifications included by a bidder in a bid will be 
considered when determining whether a bid is responsive. 


B.    In its discretion, the purchasing officer or District Board (depending on who will 
make the award) may use any of the following criteria in evaluating the responsibility of 
bidders: 


3700.71.    The ability, capacity and skill of the bidder to perform the contract or provide 
the service required. 


3700.72.    The ability of the bidder to perform the contract or provide the service 
promptly, or within the time specified, without delay or interference. 


3700.73.    The reputation and experience of the bidder, including the District’s previous 
experience with the bidder. 







3700.74.    Prior and current compliance by the bidder with applicable law, including, 
without limitation, compliance with any applicable licensing requirements. 


3700.75.    The sufficiency of the bidder’s financial and staffing resources for performing 
the contract or providing the goods or services. 


3700.76.    The quality, availability and adaptability of the supplies or contractual 
services to the particular use required. 


3700.77.    The ability and availability of the bidder to provide future 
maintenance/service. 


3700.78.    Any conditions or exceptions attached to the bid by the bidder.  


3700.080 Exceptions to this section. 


A.    The following conditions constitute sufficient cause to dispense with the bidding 
requirements of this section and such requirements shall not apply to: 


3700.81.    Contracts for professional or expert services, such as, but not limited to, 
services rendered by architects, attorneys, engineers, and other specialized consultants. 


3700.82.    Goods or services which can be provided by only one supplier or only from 
one source due to a patent or copyright. 


3700.83.    Contracts for advertising, ordinary travel expense items, and subscriptions to 
trade publications or other publications used by the District for a public purpose. 


3700.84.    Situations where no bids have been received following bid announcements or 
all bids received exceed budget appropriations or costs estimates. 


3700.85.    Emergency conditions which involve a sudden, unexpected occurrence or 
discovery of a condition or circumstance that poses a clear and imminent danger 
requiring immediate action and that compels placing an order with the most expedient 
source of supply. 


3700.86.    Contracts for janitorial services for District buildings and facilities. 


3700.87.    Products or services for which other public agencies have gone through a 
competitive bidding process and are able to have the bid prices they received extended 
to the District. These “cooperative purchasing” or “piggyback purchasing” agreements 
(including, but not limited to, CCOP State Department of General Services, U.S. General 
Services Administration, any county, and state cooperative purchasing pools) in which 
the District is eligible to participate may be used in lieu of any bidding requirements 
under this section. 


3700.88.    When the estimated value of the goods or services is less than $1,000. 







3700.89.    When the District Board specifically waives the competitive bid process and 
authorizes staff to negotiate the purchase.  


B.    This section is expressly made inapplicable to bids for public projects as defined by 
the state of California in the Public Contracts Code, Section 20160, et seq. 


3700.90 Splitting orders prohibited. 


It is unlawful to split or separate into smaller orders the purchase of goods or services for 
the purpose of evading the competitive bidding provisions of this section. For goods or 
services which are purchased repeatedly throughout a year, the bidding procedures 
used shall be consistent with the estimated cumulative expenditures during a 12-month 
period.  


3700.100 Prevailing wages. 


Potential bidders for goods and services that are subject to the requirements of the 
California Prevailing Wage Law (California Labor Code Section 1720, et seq.) shall be 
notified of the applicability of prevailing wage requirements in the bid documents and 
shall comply therewith.  


3700.110 Inspection and testing of purchases. 


The purchasing officer is authorized to order the inspection of supplies and equipment 
delivered and services performed to determine their conformance with the specifications 
set forth in the order or contract. The purchasing officer shall have authority to require 
chemical and physical tests of samples submitted with bids and samples of deliveries 
which are necessary to determine their quality and conformance with specifications. 


3700.120 Surplus supplies and equipment. 


At such times as determined by the purchasing officer, reports shall be prepared 
showing all supplies and equipment which are no longer used or which have become 
obsolete or worn out. The purchasing officer shall have the authority to sell, trade or 
exchange all supplies and equipment. All surplus property valued at more than 
$10,000.00 requires a District Board resolution declaring it surplus. Upon declaration of 
an asset as surplus, the District General Manager shall have the authority to dispose of 
supplies and equipment in whatever manner shall best serve the interests of the District.  


 


3700.130  Surplus Real Property Belonging to District.   
 
Surplus real property belonging to the District shall be disposed of, sold or transferred 
only as the Board of Directors may prescribe, but unless otherwise prescribed in any 
case, the following procedures therefore shall be followed: 
 
3700.131. A notice shall be given by the Clerk of the Board stating that the District 
proposes to sell certain described property and stating the time and place when sealed 
bids will be received thereon. 







 
3700.1342. The Board of Directors shall fix the time and place for the receipt of such 
bids and shall instruct the Clerk of the Board  with respect thereto. 
 
3700.133. Such notice calling for sealed bids shall be published at least once in a 
newspaper of general circulation printed, published and circulate within the District or 
County of Sonoma, State of California, at least ten days prior to the date fixed for the 
receipt and opening of such bids. 
 
3700.134. Upon the receipt of such bids and at the time and place fixed therefore, 
the same shall be publicly opened and declared by the Board of Directors and the 
property sold to the highest bidder therefore, provided, however, that the Board may 
reject all bids and retain the property or determine that bids shall again be called for. 
 
3700.135. Nothing herein set forth shall apply to any easement, license or lease of 
land for a term of fifty (50) years of less; provided that such easement, license or lease 
and all use thereunder shall be subordinate to use of such land by the District for the 
major purposes of the District. 


3700.140  Purchase of Real Property - Eminent Domain.   


If and whenever the Board of Directors shall determine that the District requires and 
should purchase real property, or any interest therein, it shall do so without any call for 
bids and in such manner as may be specified in each instance.  In the event the Board 
shall so determine, it may in any instance proceed with eminent domain proceedings. 


  


 
 







Attachment B.  Existing Conflict of Interest Policy 


1020  Conflict of Interest 
Date Approved:    _______________ 
Date Revised:      October 7, 2004 
 
 1020.10 The Political Reform Act, Government Code Section 81000 et 
seq., requires state and local government agencies to adopt and promulgate conflict of 
interest codes.  The Fair Political Practices Commission has adopted a regulation, 2 Cal. 
Code of Regs. Section 18730, which contains the terms of a standard conflict of interest 
code.  It can be incorporated by reference and may be amended by the Fair Political 
Practices Commission after public notice and hearings to conform to amendments in the 
Political Reform Act.  Therefore, the terms of 2 Cal. Code of Regs. Section 18730 and 
any amendments to it duly adopted by the Fair Political Practices commission are 
hereby incorporated by reference and, along with the attached Appendix "A" in which 
members of the Board of Directors and employees are designated, and in which 
disclosure categories are set forth, constitute the conflict of interest code of the 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT. 
 
 1020.20 Designated employees shall file statements of economic interests 
with the clerk of the County of Sonoma. 
 
 
Attachment B.1.  Proposed Conflict of Interest Policy 
 


1020  Conflict of Interest 
Date Approved:    _______________ 
Date Revised:      October 7, 2004 
 
 1020.10 The Political Reform Act, Government Code Section 81000 et 
seq., requires state and local government agencies to adopt and promulgate conflict of 
interest codes.  The Fair Political Practices Commission has adopted a regulation, 2 Cal. 
Code of Regs. Section 18730, which contains the terms of a standard conflict of interest 
code.  It can be incorporated by reference and may be amended by the Fair Political 
Practices Commission after public notice and hearings to conform to amendments in the 
Political Reform Act.  Therefore, the terms of 2 Cal. Code of Regs. Section 18730 and 
any amendments to it duly adopted by the Fair Political Practices commission are 
hereby incorporated by reference and, along with the attached Appendix "A" in which 
members of the Board of Directors and employees are designated, and in which 
disclosure categories are set forth, constitute the conflict of interest code of the 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT. 
 
 1020.20 Designated employeesBoard Members and the General Manager 
shall file statements of economic interests with the clerk of the County of Sonoma.  All 
other designated employees shall file statements with the Clerk of the Board for the 
Sweetwater Springs Water District.   





		Item V-D - Proposed Purchasing and Conflict of Interest Policy Changes

		MEETING DATE:  July 10, 2013 



		Item V-D.1 - Attachment A - Proposed Purchasing Policy Changes

		Attachment A.  Existing  Purchasing Policy

		3700  Bidding and Purchasing



		Item V-D.2 - Attachment B - Proposed Conflict of Interest Policy Changes

		Attachment B.  Existing Conflict of Interest Policy

		1020  Conflict of Interest

		1020  Conflict of Interest








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: July 10, 2013  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE 2012 - 2013 ANNUAL REVIEW 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a staff presentation regarding the 2013 Annual 
Review. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none   


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
For some time the District has made an effort to do an annual review of some sort.  
Recently this has been review of the District Goals and Objectives which were first 
drafted in 2007.  At last year’s review of this document, the Board was in agreement 
that the format of the Goals and Objectives was not appropriate for current conditions 
and formed an ad hoc Formatting Committee to attempt to come up with something 
better.  This committee met a number of times and agreed that an annual review of 
District activities was appropriate, but the old format was not.  The attached Annual 
Review (Exhibit A) is an attempt to make the annual review document more readable, 
relevant, and practical to maintain.  It is still a work in progress and comments and 
suggestions are welcome.  As always, periodic review of District activities is a good 
check on what we are doing and with Board concurrence, we will continue the practice.     
 







Exhibit A: Sweetwater Springs Water District Annual 
Review, Fiscal Year 2012-2013 


 
The annual review is a look back of the achievements of the 
past fiscal year and a look forward to what we are expecting 
for the coming fiscal year.   
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide 
its customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and 
cost-effective manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the 
community and environment.  The District provides water distribution and 
maintenance services to five townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


• Guerneville 
• Rio Nido 
• Guernewood Park 
• Villa Grande 
• Monte Rio 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO 
ENSURE EFFECTIVE UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
FY 2013 Achievements:   


• Third year that 3% increase to Base Rate and Water Usage Charges 
was approved; 3% increase to Capital Debt Reduction Charge as well.   


• Investigated USDA Bonds and current bonds retirement.   
• Initiated refinancing of USDA Bonds – to be completed in July 2013. 
• Reserve Policy met by FY 2014 Budget.   


 
FY 2014 Projections: 


• Refinancing of USDA Bonds will be completed in July. 
• Investigate/monitor need for rate increase in May 2014, effective July 


2014. 
• Examine financial planning model to ensure it is meeting current 


financial planning needs; revise where appropriate.   
• Meet Reserve Policy with FY 2015 Budget.   


 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE 
WATER WITH FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, 
MANAGED AND MAINTAINED TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
FY 2013 Achievements: 


• Compliance with California Department of Public Health (DPH) 
regulations achieved.  Annual report submitted according to schedule.  
DPH Inspection of Monte Rio System in June. 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Annual Review  
Fiscal Year 2012-2013  2 
 


• 2013 CIP (Starrett Hill Road and Middle Terrace in Monte Rio,  Lovers 
Lane in Guernewood Park, and Canyon Seven Rd in Rio Nido) 
completed. 


• 2014 CIP (Hidden Valley Road and Guernewood Lane) contract 
awarded in June 2013. 


• 2015 CIP (Old Monte Rio Road) in design; award of contract in June 
2014.   


• Review of long-term CIP done; approved 2014-2019 CIP;  
• 2013 CIP.   
• Investigation of Rio Vista Project failed service saddles completed with 


replacement of all saddles completed; payment issues with contractor 
resolved. 


• Total Leaks for calendar year 2012 at 191. 
• System leakage at 26% (May 2013). 


 
FY 2014 Projections: 
 


• FY 2015 CIP (Old Monte Rio Road) in design for construction in 
summer/fall of 2014. 


• Total leaks for calendar year 2013 at 175. 
• System leakage at 24%. 


 
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS 
FOR ALL REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
FY 2013 Achievements:   
 


• Emergency Action Plan was reviewed and updated in October 2012.     
• Participated in County Emergency Operations communication exercise 


in October 2012.   
 
FY 2014 Projections: 
 


• Update of Emergency Action Plan in October 2013. 
• Participate in County Emergency Operations communications/meetings 


in 2013.    
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
FY 2013 Achievements: 
 


• Continued low turnover in overall staff indicating healthy workplace.   
• Field staff fully involved with Rio Vista Project investigation and repair. 
• Field staff oversight of 2013 CIP. 
• 42 in-house projects totaling 1245 man-hours.   







Sweetwater Springs Water District Annual Review  
Fiscal Year 2012-2013  3 
 


• Moved Water Treatment Operator duties to a rotating effort among 3 
certified Maintenance Workers and Crew Supervisors.   


  
FY 2014 Projections: 
 


• Continue staff training efforts. 
• Oversee completion of 2014 CIP. 
• Continue focus on in-house projects. 


 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, 
INFORMATION AND EDUCATION 
 
FY 2013 Achievements: 
 


• Meeting summary sent to local media on monthly basis.  One local 
media (KGGV radio) added.   


• Provided time for Sonoma County Water Agency to do presentation 
and answer questions on Russian River low flow situation. 


• Website updated on at least monthly basis. 
 
FY 2014 Projections: 
 


• Continue meeting summary.   
• Look for opportunities to provide community leadership/participation 


on water-related issues.   
• Continue to look for ways to make website more useful.   


 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND 
INFORMATION 
 
FY 2013 Achievements: 
 


• Policy updates on purchasing and conflict of interest underway. 
• Website section for Board members begun; needs refinement. 
• Attended Successor Agency Oversight Committee meetings. 
• June tour of Monte Rio system facilities. 


 
FY 2014 Projections: 
 


• Complete purchasing conflict of interest policy revisions.  Review other 
sections for revision. 


• Evaluate facility tour opportunities. 
• Refine Board Member website section; put into use.   
 


 
 





		Item V-E - 2013 Annual Review

		Meeting Date: July 10, 2013 



		Item V-E.1 - EX A 2013 Annual Review






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-F  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


MEETING DATE:  July 10, 2013  
 
Subject:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE ESTABLISHING AN AGENDA EMAIL 
LIST 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Discuss establishing an agenda email list and 
provide direction to staff.   


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none expected.       
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
At the June meeting Director Schaap requested that this item be added to the 
July agenda for Board discussion.  In the interim, legal counsel Warner provided 
the following statement regarding the District’s obligation regarding provision of 
agendas and agenda packets: 
 
Section 54954.1 of the Government Code allows any person to request a copy of the 
agenda and the agenda packet to be mailed to them upon the earlier of the time the (1) 
agenda is posted or (2) packet is distributed to a majority of the board members.  Any 
request is valid only for the calendar year in which it is filed and must be renewed 
following January 1 of each year.  The Board can establish a fee for mailing the agenda 
packet.  If the parties agree to use email instead of regular mail I think that meets the 
intent of the statute as does sending a link to the agenda packet rather than emailing 
the whole packet (if the requestor is okay with that).  The Board can establish more 
permissive rules but not more restrictive ones. 
 
   





		MEETING DATE:  July 10, 2013 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: July 10, 2013  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Laboratory Testing: Water quality tests confirm that all SSWD water meets all known 
State and Federal water quality standards.   


 
2. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in May was 28,850 units (66.2 AF, 


Guerneville cycle) and production was 76.8 AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales was 
higher and production was slightly higher this May (54.6 AF and 76.2 AF, respectively).  
The annual average difference between sales and production decreased compared to the 
prior month to 25.5%.  Figure 1 shows the 12 month moving averages since September 
2006, data are available back to May 2001.       


 
3. Leaks:  In May we had 12 total leaks and spent 31 man-hours on them.   Those are more 


leaks but fewer man-hours compared to the prior month and substantially fewer leaks and 
hours than May one year ago (29 leaks, 103 man-hours).  Figure 2 is continued showing 
service and main leaks separately with a total breaks line as well.            


 
4. Flow at Hacienda Bridge: We had some nice rain in June but the overall dry year is 


continuing.  Figure 3 shows the blip in flow from the recent rain but also shows that flow 
has been well below the long-term average and the flow at the same time in the 2009 
drought year with the exception of the effects of the recent rain.  We intend to add 
information about the drought and the regional 20 gallon challenge to the website. 


 
5. 2014 CIP:   We had our preconstruction meeting on June 28.  The contractor, Piazza 


Construction is scheduled to start construction on the Hidden Valley element on August 5.            
 


6. Toilet Rebate/Direct Install Program:   One toilet rebate was approved in June.  The 
Direct Install Program numbers are the same as last month: the most current accounting is 
17 customers have had 27 direct install toilet installations completed, 13 customers with 17 
toilets have been approved for installation and 21 customers with 37 toilets are on a wait 
list.                     







General Manager’s Report  Page 2 of 4 
July 10, 2013 
 


7. In-House Construction Projects:  There were two in-house projects reported for June.  
Staff replaced 108 feet of 1 inch water line and 176 feet of 2 inch main and 3 services on 
David Lane (104.5 hours), and replaced 2 services and one meter on Redwood Drive in 
Monte Rio (57 hours).     


 
8. Gantt Chart:   The Gantt Chart has been updated to reflect the new fiscal year.  Please 


review it to see if all expected activities are included.  The only activity listed for July is the 
annual review.  2014 CIP construction will start in August.  .   


 


.          


Figure 1.  Water Production and Sales 12 Month Moving Averages
Sweetwater Springs Water District Since September 2006 


0


200


400


600


800


1,000


1,200


Sep-06 Mar-07 Sep-07 Mar-08 Sep-08 Mar-09 Sep-09 Mar-10 Sep-10 Mar-11 Sep-11 Mar-12 Sep-12 Mar-13


Sa
le


s 
an


d 
Pr


od
uc


tio
n 


(A
F)


5.0%


10.0%


15.0%


20.0%


25.0%


30.0%


35.0%


D
iff


er
en


ce
 (%


)


Sales
Production
%Difference


 
 







General Manager’s Report  Page 3 of 4 
July 10, 2013 


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Main and Service Pipeline Breaks 
Moving Annual Average Since September 2006


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


Sep-
06


Jan-
07


May-
07


Sep-
07


Jan-
08


May-
08


Sep-
08


Jan-
09


May-
09


Sep-
09


Jan-
10


May-
10


Sep-
10


Jan-
11


May-
11


Sep-
11


Jan-
12


May-
12


Sep-
12


Jan-
13


May-
13


B
re


ak
s


Main Breaks


Service Breaks


Total Leaks


Figure 3.  Russian River Summer Flow at Hacienda Bridge, 2013 Compared to Earlier Years 
and the 2000-2008 Average, Updated July 3, 2013


0


50


100


150


200


250


300


1-
M


ay


8-
M


ay


15
-M


ay


22
-M


ay


29
-M


ay


5-
Ju


n


12
-J


un


19
-J


un


26
-J


un


3-
Ju


l


10
-J


ul


17
-J


ul


24
-J


ul


31
-J


ul


7-
Au


g


14
-A


ug


21
-A


ug


28
-A


ug


4-
Se


p


Fl
ow


 (c
fs


)


2000-08 Avg


2009


2012


2013


Source: USGS 
http://waterdata.usgs.gov/nwis/uv?11467000


 







 
Dec-12 Jan-13 Feb-13 Mar-13 Apr-13 May-13 Jun-13 Jul-13 Aug-13 Sep-13 Oct-13 Nov-13 Dec-13 Jan-14 Feb-14 Mar-14 Apr-14 May-14 Jun-14 Jul-14 FY 15+


Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion
/
Milestone 
Date


Crystal Communications Lease
2013-14 Budget Preparation


•        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
•        Staff Budget Preparation Begins


•        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
•        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
•        Approve Budget


2014-15 Budget Preparation
•        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
•        Staff Budget Preparation Begins


•        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
•        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
•        Approve Budget


Capital Projects
•        Update/Review District CIP


•        2014 CIP Design


•        2014 CIP Award of Contract


•        2014 CIP Construction Starts


•        2015 CIP Design


•        2015 CIP Award of Contract


•        2015 CIP Construction Starts


Urban Water Management Plan Dec-15


Water Rights SCWA Protest


Building Lease
•        Lease Ends July-16


Policies and Procedures
•        Other Policy
•        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Annual Review


Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 
 





		Meeting Date: July 10, 2013 



